
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
RIDGECREST CITY COUNCIL AND 

RIDGECREST REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY AND 

City Council Chambers 
100 West California Avenue 
Ridgecrest, California 93555 

CALL TO ORDER 

Meeting called to order at 6:00p.m. 

ROLLCALL 

December 2, 2009 
6:00 p.m. 

Council Members Present: Mayor Steven P. Morgan, Mayor Pro Tem Ronald H. Carter, 
Vice Mayor Thomas R. Wiknich, Councilmember Marshall "Chip" Holloway and 
Council member Jerry Taylor 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Add Finance Director Staheli to Director's Report 

CLOSED SESSION - 6:00 p.m. 

Meeting was adjourned by Mayor Morgan to closed session. 

REGULAR SESSION - 6:30 p.m. 

Regular session 6:45p.m. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Morgan 

INVOCATION 

Invocation provided 

CITY ATTORNEY REPORTS 

GC54956.9 Conference with Legal Counsel - Potential Litigation - Disclosure of 
Potential Litigant Would Prejudice the City of Ridgecrest 

• No Action Taken 

GC54957 Personnel Matter - City Manager Recruitment - Report 

• No Action Taken 



MINUTES - CITY COUNCIL I REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY - REGULAR 
December 2, 2009 
Page 2 

GC54956.9 Conference with Legal Counsel - Liability Claim of Anthanasios 
Leventis - Claim No. 09-07 

GC54956.9 Conference with Legal Counsel - Liability Claim of Angela Leventis 
- Claim No. 09-08 

• Council will take action - recommendation to deny claim. 
• Motion for denial by Mayor Morgan. Councilmember Jerry 

Taylor moved and Mayor Pro T em Ron Carter seconded the 
motion. All approved. 

• Wayne Lemieux explained that litigants requested additional 
signage on Highway 14. 

COMMITTEES, BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

First Council Meeting (1 st Wednesday of the month) 

Community Development Committee 
Member: Steve Morgan, Ron Carter, Eric Kauffman, Jason Patin 
Meetings: 1 st Thursday of the month at 5:00 p.m.; Council Conference 
Room 
Next meeting December 3, 2009 

RACVB 
Council Members Chip Holloway, Jerry Taylor 
Meetings: 1st Wednesday of the month, 8:00 a.m. 
Next meeting December 2, 2009 at Carriage Inn 

• Per Councilmember Holloway, RACVB met this morning and Doug 
Lueck spoke with David Thayer, the producer from the "Krawler 
Nation" television show for a possible episode being filmed in the 
Ridgecrest area. 

• In January Lueck will be attending the California Cultural & Heritage 
Symposium along with Harris Brokke of the Maturango Museum. 
While there, both will meet with Doug McConnell host of "Open 
Road T.V." as well as Huell Howser whose television shows air on 
KCET/PBS television. 

• The RACVB provided Harvey Rose's office with 50 Visitor 
Packages for the visiting Kern County Association of Cities; the 
dinner will be held at N.A.W.S. on December 3rd

• 

• November had 10 days of filming, generating $357,500 in film 
revenue. The next meeting will be held on Wednesday, January, 6, 
2010 at the Best Western. 

Parks, Recreation and Quality of Life Committee 



MINUTES - CITY COUNCIL I REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY - REGULAR 
December 2, 2009 
Page 3 

Members: Ron Carter, Chip Holloway, Craig Porter, Jason Patin 
Meetings: 3rd Thursday of the month at 5:00 p.m.; Kerr-McGee Center 

• Mayor Pro Tern Carter announced the next Quality of Life meeting is 
scheduled for February 18, 2010. Work on Maturango Junction, 
Denny's Park, and roller skating park. 

Youth Advisory Council 

OTHER COMMITTEES, BOARDS, OR COMMISSIONS 

CITY MANAGER/EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORTS 

• Director Ponek commented that there are many parties (at the Kerr-McGee 
Center) due to the holiday season. They are finished with basketball sign-ups. 
Working on financial assistance for programs - over 350 youth currently enrolled. 
Issues with programs accommodating for special days, currently unable to do. 
350 youth in football season. Christmas lighting ceremony this week starting at 
5:30pm which includes lighting of the large Christmas tree. Kerr-McGee youth 
baseball association-working on getting netting. Quality of Life meeting 
scheduled for December 3rd at noon; will discuss land acquisition. 

• Finance Director Staheli commented on the City's financial system. Two weeks 
ago the financial system crashed. Management Information System (MIS) is in 
process of restoring the system. While the system is down, Finance has put a 
temporary system in place for payroll and bill payment. The City is not bankrupt. 
Mid-year and end of year reports have to be pushed back. Finance is focusing 
on just those items. Believe crash was due to a hardware failure. Mayor Morgan 
and Council member Taylor would like a more detailed report on the system 
failure. 

• City Manager Rose added that if we can recover data we can put system back in 
place but HTE cannot guarantee the system will not go down. (HTE is the system 
in place) City has been looking for new system in the past and had money in the 
budget. Even if the City could get a new system it would take 6 months. Mayor 
Morgan stated they need more technical information on what died. 

• Vice Mayor Wiknich announced that he and Mayor Pro Tern Carter were 
appointed to a special committee which had a lengthy discussion on a number of 
issues with Benz Sanitation, Inc. He stated that the City has this capability 
because the California Waste Integrated Management Board (CIWMB) has given 
the City this now - they did not in the past. Discussing the level of service that 
the people want. We are working towards an agreement on that with both the 
residential and commercial. Written guidelines out by next week. This is a major 
shift. We will continue to meet with them (Benz) on possible exemptions (Le. 



MINUTES - CITY COUNCIL I REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY - REGULAR 
December 2, 2009 
Page 4 

medical). Looking at affordability for whatever reason. He asked that people 
bear with the Council as they try to make changes. 

• Mayor Pro Tern Carter stated he wanted to thank Benz adding that Benz is the 
City's partner. He added that Council has listened to everything the community 
has said to them at Council meetings and as Council members have been 
stopped in stores. Vice Mayor Wiknich thanked Benz as well. 

• Mayor Morgan asked if there would still be a ~ublic meeting and Councilmember 
Taylor replied that on Monday, December 7 at 5:30 there will still be a public 
meeting in order to solicit input from the public. On December 14th at the City 
Organization meeting, transit will be discussed however, budget item has been 
removed. 

• Vice Mayor Wiknich stated that Infrastructure meeting will be take place on 
Wednesday, December 9th

. 

• Mayor Morgan announced that there will be a Quad State teleconference - on 
December 3rd in LaPaz. Chairman of Kern Council of Governments will hold a 
discussion on planning grants on Proposition 84. Discussion on Clean Energy 
Job and Power Act from Senator Boxer and Senator Carey which include 
recycling. Kern County Association of Cities (KCAC) meeting tomorrow, 
representation from almost all cities. 

• City Manager Rose has attempted to earmark dollars for Wastewater. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1. A Public Hearing To Consider Planning Commission Recommendation To 
Approve Certification Of The Final Environmental Impact Report (EIR) And 
Approval Of The Proposed City Of Ridgecrest General Plan Update McRea 

The General Plan Update sets forth a 20-year development plan for the City of 
Ridgecrest. 

1. Resolution No. 09-, A Resolution of the City Council of the City of 
Ridgecrest approving CERTIFICATION OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL 
IMPACT REPORT as complete and meeting CEQA Guidelines, and 

2. Resolution No. 09-, A Resolution Of The City Council Of the City of 
Ridgecrest Approving A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE GENERAL 
PLAN UPDATE 

Attachments shown for reference only, included within this City Council staff 
report: 

1. Resolution to Certify the General Plan Update Environmental Impact 
Report, 



MINUTES - CITY COUNCIL I REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY - REGULAR 
December 2, 2009 
Page 5 

2. Resolution to Approve the Adoption of the General Plan Update 

3. Planning Commission Staff Report, October 20, 2009, 

4. Planning Commission Resolution 09-22, recommending certifying General 
Plan Environment Impact Report, 

5. Planning Commission Resolution 09-23, recommending approving 
General Plan Update 2030, 

6. Planning Commission Minutes, October 20, 2009, 

7. General Plan Addendum - December 2,2009, 

Due to the length of the documents listed below, distribution of hard copies of 
items B - 11 shall be to the City Council, City Manager, City Attorney and Public 
Services Director. These documents are available online and at the City 
Planning Division office. 

B. Draft General Plan Environmental Impact Report, May 2009, 

9. Final General Plan Environmental Impact Report, September 2009, 

10. General Plan Update Public Draft, October 200B, 

11. Land Use Diagram, B pages, (Exhibit C) October 2009 

• Jim McRea stated that this General Plan has been recommended by the 
Planning Commission and the General Board. Two resolutions will be presented 
tonight. The General Plan process originally began in 1967. For the updated 
General Plan, in 2007 public workshops were instituted with the public giving the 
City direction on where they wanted us to go. The housing element portion must 
be reviewed separately every 5 years and is not being considered this evening. 
After formation of public input, Council then authorized General Plan Action 
Committee (GPAC) for various alternatives to the plan. GPAC broke into 3 sub
committees and came together for specific recommendations. DRAFT EIR was 
unveiled on May 2009 and on Sept 2009 Final EIR was issued. Planning 
Commission met on October 20,2009 to review all reports and recommendations 
to City Council and to obtain additional information from the public. 

• Rick Russ will inform Council and public what the consultant added to this report 
- which includes Analysis and Development Process - Military Sustainability and 
Health and Safety Elements. He stated he first went thru a level of discovery
what are the issues that need to be addressed. First document presented was a 
map atlas. They took a good look at where we are today, what are the current 
conditions and worked through that. Each of the components had a map. Three 
workshops focused on issues and identifications, current opportunities and what 
would citizens like their community to look like. Citizens were asked how they 
would distribute people in their community. Infill #1 and Infill #2 samples were 



MINUTES - CITY COUNCIL I REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY - REGULAR 
December 2, 2009 
Page 6 

provided. They looked at various expansion areas and how they would look. 
South area of town is a concern regarding water pressure. West area expansion 
was not included in the final plan. GPAC consensus legend shows where 
density areas are. Specific plan overlay was also shown on this legend. Policy 
direction and choices document went beyond the map and shown to GPAC and 
City Council in order to move forward. Ranking gave military the highest score. 
Optional element - military sustainability. NAWS and the City of Ridgecrest, joint 
landing study done at various cities. May 2007 ACUS study (some of the 
components in this report, i.e. noise and safety). Looked at x24 compatibility 
issues. Goal 1, continued operations of China Lake and City can continue their 
growth. Goal 2, provide opportunity. Land use element on land use map. This 
was put in place for safety and noise. The General Plan itself when looking at 
this area is looking for an orderly transition for public health and welfare and 
maintains operational capabilities of military installations and areas. Maintaining 
a consistent look at what is already there - what already exists. Health and 
Safety Element from PD, air quality, flood, global warming. On both the draft and 
final EIR, a couple of additions have been recommended. 

• City Planner Matthew Alexander looking at abbreviated version of 2.5 years of 
work and thanked the Planning Commission and all participants. He commented 
that this process involved 19 meetings and various sub-committees. GPAC met 
on numerous occasions. With community design element the intent is to provide 
flexibility - a more "walk able community." The Land Use Element map went 
through various drafts and has many mandatory elements. There are a variety of 
land uses for residential, low density residential and medium density residential 
in place. After the General Plan public hearing of October 20, 2009 the City 
Council received a letter regarding the China Lake and Dolphin area for 
residential vs. commercial. Also on Aileen Street a lot merger request has been 
made, however, the Planning commission recommends the lot remain as is. 
During this planning, Village Commercial uses were also created and mixed use 
designation for all commercial. Eleven (11) policies were recommended and with 
Old Towne considered a major asset. The Planning Commission recommended 
that an Advisory Group be formed for an action plan for the Old Towne area. 
Discussion of Circulation Element to create attractive areas, Open Space and 
Conservation Element for future parks, bicycle paths, the Bowman Channel for 
recreational and Parks locations with schools - to establish pocket parks and 
increase current park ratios and encourage pocket parks. 

• Jim McRea commented that there will be a public hearing opportunity. The EIR, 
draft of the document, land use map and some resolutions are included in the 
agenda. Jim McRea introduced GPAC and Planning Commission members to 
City Council. Mayor Morgan thanked Council members for allowing GPAC to 
exist and to all who were on GPAC who gave of their time and to those 
community members who got involved and got the City to this point; he thanked 
them all. 

• John O'Gara, NAWS Senior Environmental Planner introduced Commander Lee 
Johnson. Commander Johnson stated he appreciated the dialogue between the 



MINUTES - CITY COUNCIL I REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY - REGULAR 
December 2, 2009 
Page 7 

City the base and all stake holders. He suggests that the thoroughness of the 
plan demonstrates the best interest of the base and the City. In closing, he looks 
forward to continuing to work with the City. NAWS recommends approving the 
General Plan. 

• Nellavan Jeglum commented that she is proud to have been part of the whole 
process. She added that everyone who participated in this process had the 
future of the community and the base at all times. She feels the plan allows 
Ridgecrest to be Ridgecrest while allowing the city to grow. She was proud to be 
part of this endeavor. 

7:50 Mayor Morgan opened the floor to public comment 

- Stan Rajtora - asked for clarification of MIA. Rick Russ explained that an area 
within 2 miles of airport you are required to make certain findings - any incident 
no matter how small. Stan Rajtora then asked if there is a way of getting that 
information and Rick Russ stated that is a standard for military bases - any 
installations around the United States. Stan Rajtora said he understood that 
however, the EIR states there are a significant risk and Rick Russ explained that 
there is a significant impact anywhere an incident occurs. 

- Stan Rajtora commented that when a contractor goes to look at his development, 
he ought to be able to determine risk and Rick Russ commented that is the 
standard that is used across the U.S. in the ACUIS area. Stan Rajtora asked the 
ACUIS on Navy property? Where in the planning area is there significant risk 
caused by the navy aircraft and Rick Russ answered, "I'm telling you anywhere 
where Navy aircraft exists can be considered risk. The fact that these flights are 
taking place is risk." 

- Stan Rajtora continued stating there is a significant impact on the departure and 
arrival zone. It could be anywhere. Where do you consider the departure area? 
When a developer comes in and he wants to develop property, how is he going 
to be consistent with the EIR? 

- Jim McRea stated he does that with the MIA. The county will use "area of 
interest". ACUIS is study of noise and talks about study of MIA is intended for 
real estate disclosure. 

- Attorney Lemieux added that the development does not have to be consistent 
with the EIR. The Council has to take the EIR with the General Plan. The land 
use map is the first place a developer looks. 

- Stan Rajtora asked does it not disclose noise and safety. Rick Russ stated the 
whole point of disclosure is to make sure you understand and to help you make 
an informed choice. Stan Rajtora agreed, however, in his opinion what the City 
is doing with the disclosure is keeping people from buying property. The 2004 
Environmental Impact Statement talks about the risk on base and off base. John 



MINUTES - CITY COUNCIL I REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY - REGULAR 
December 2, 2009 
PageS 

O'Gara commented that Stan Rajtora is correct that in 2004 the Environmental 
Impact Statement talks about the risk on and off base. 

- Stan Rajtora then asked if anyone from the Navy challenged the city's 
Environmental Impact Statement and the attorney answered that the City drafted 
under the Environmental Quality Act. Cannot use them to use the same 
terminology, especially when using the word significant (note: the Navy uses 
Federal EIS and City follows CEQUA, therefore, there are differences in 
terminology and standards). 

- Stan Rajtora added that the Navy says less than significant and city says 
significant. He would like to see both policies. There may be good reasons but 
the City should understand what that is. 90% of MIA is in county. Is county 
aware? Mayor Morgan stated the county will make their own determination. 
Rick Russ added Kern County had not adopted this General Plan and at this 
point neither has Ridgecrest. Kern County - they will use this EIR and draw their 
own conclusions. 

Stan Rajtora said he would expect the City to do a Matrix document showing 
difference between city and county. Rick Russ stated there are not publish 
standards; it is a local decision on significance. You have to judge them based 
on the context. CEQUA document is here for public education. It is not 
regulating city in any sense. Stan Rajtora replied there may not be a standard 
but there should be some similarity. 

- Stan Rajtora commented he also has financial concerns regarding Ridgecrest's 
General Plan. Streets are in need of $150-200million dollar and that number 
continues to grow; plus the Infrastructure committee does not know how much it 
will cost us. The Draft EIR states the General Plan doable if there is money so I 
say where is the money? 

Darwin Rosenlof has a petition signed by himself and x39 of his neighbors. He 
commented that he is supportive of the General Plan but not in his estate 
residential area. Concern is zoning change to commercial with nothing planned 
to be put there. His request is to leave this area as is and revert back to current 
plan. If there is something that needs a zoning change in future then take a look 
at it. 

Matthew Alexander commented that it is a much more viable piece of property of 
commercial. Dolphin is scheduled to be an arterial street. He added that if a 
specific commercial project went in, landscaping and/or decorative block wall 
could be required. 

Darwin Rosenlof commented that mixed use development has been 
recommended in past and they have concerns. Councilman Taylor asked what 
specific area on map is was referring to and Darwin Rosenlof stated the entire 
area, "just leave it alone." When Councilmember Holloway made another 



MINUTES - CITY COUNCIL I REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY - REGULAR 
December 2, 2009 
Page 9 

commercial recommendation for the area Darwin Rosenlof replied that he has a 
concern with any commercial in that area. 

- Jim McRea stated that is why there is site plan review. It is an arterial street and 
compatible for commercial. Under the current development standards they could 
have a rear yard that faces Dolphin. 

- Kathleen Rosenlof said that about 1 year ago someone wanted to bring in some 
mixed use into the area, however, with commercial; they would be looking at a 
brick wall. They didn't buy in a commercial area, they bought in residential. "Boy 
I really feel sorry for you people on Dolphin" was a comment made by City 
Council member. "Please remember those words," she stated. She still 
questions why one area is kept residential and not another. 

Mayor Morgan commented that he was sorry that it didn't make sense to her. 
She is in an area that the Planning Commission feels should be changed. 
Matthew Alexander commented that the Planning Commission had a conceptual 
plan. 

Darwin Rosenlof stated they we walked in the area and they did not meet any 
Councilmembers. He hopes Council takes into consideration those that live 
there. They have accepted the Fire Station in the neighborhood. 

Robert Snowden is concerned concern with commercial area and why x3 story 
building needs to be there. Make it at least a single level. Mayor Morgan added 
there has to be some limits to what changes are being recommended. 

- Vice Mayor Wiknich asked if the current strip of land they are discussing - is that 
commercial? Matthew Alexander answered that is estate residential. Vice 
Mayor Wiknich stated leave it the way it is if the residents like it (people in 
Council Chambers applauded). Councilmember Taylor stated perhaps in the 
future a park can go on the land and people commented they would not 
necessarily like that. Bonnie Haydoo on Dolphin is concerned that commercial 
zoning would bring traffic into the area. 

- Jim Fallgetter stated there should be a process to hear these individual items and 
now we have this excellent document on the General Plan. He feels this is a 
great plan (as a private citizen and member of GPAC). He appreciates a city that 
spent 2 years on this plan. He added that these are results of hundreds of hours 
and by hundreds of citizens who have gone through blocks of areas. He 
reminded the audience that everyone had a chance to participate. This plan can 
be changed up to 3 times per year and he hopes it doesn't find itself into a dust 
bin somewhere. He thanked Matthew Alexander, Matrix and Nellavan Jeglum for 
the opportunity to work on this document; 

Raymond Kelso is concerned with the MIA (families that lives in the MIA corridor; 
potential accident zone). He feels it's a safe and healthy issue and holds future 
consequence. 

--------------------------



MINUTES - CITY COUNCIL I REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY - REGULAR 
December 2, 2009 
Page 10 

- Carol Vaughn, President of Board of Realtors, asked if an airplane can have a 
significant incident is it his recommendation that we use a safety disclosure on 
every home in Ridgecrest. Rick Russ answered that is not part of this document. 

Carol Vaughn stated she doesn't know but that the city in the EIR could accuse 
the Navy. She made a comment regarding it was done to make the Navy love 
you more. A 1979 accident report and recommendation to Navy was to move 
flights and she feels they did that by buying flight corridors. 

Rick Russ said that demographics were considered and those demographics are 
outdated and the City divided up with lack of hard data. They need to know 
before making a house use plan. Asked Parsons if we are losing retirement 
people. How can you do a land use study - so we can plan on what we have and 
what we are going to need. Need to know the demographics and the land. Rick 
Russ commented that to do housing element, you need stats from COG. All 
jurisdictions updated at the same time. Future growth in General Plan and you 
provide for flexibility. 

- Carol Vaughn commented she is hearing rumors on building condos and wants 
to make sure it fits with government salary schedule. On the base, they are not 
having lot of 60+age group. She added that Stan Rajtora says about 
Infrastructure is real. It's nice to have a plan, but we need a plan we can fulfill. 

Planning Commissioner Patin added that GPAC, city staff, and citizens that 
participated in this process did an incredible job (by the time he came to the 
Planning Commission). He stated that the documents before the City Council 
are exceptional and he asks that they approve them tonight. 

- Carol mentioned the school on Navy land on how on 09-11-01 it created havoc 
for the base and the City. She asks, "What happens to the City when the base 
has a significant incident? What happens to our school? Where in this plan?" 

- Jim McRea stated the Superintendant of Schools served on the GPAC. The 
school district and base have their own plans. Mayor Pro Tem Carter (and 
former school principal) commented that the school district does have plans. 
They like to have the school district off the base but the money is not there and 
he stated the Council appreciates Jodie Rummer. Jim McRea commented the 
school district recommends the General Plan. 

9: 15 closed the floor to public comment 

• Mayor Morgan asked the Council how they felt regarding the residents of one 
particular neighborhood; how do they want to deal this this and Mayor Pro Tem 
Carter answered approve the plan. 



MINUTES - CITY COUNCIL I REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY - REGULAR 
December 2, 2009 
Page 11 

• Councilmember Taylor answered remove commercial from residential area. 
Make the last triangle portion back to residential and in the art of compromise 
have the rest commercial. 

• Vice Mayor Wiknich answered leave neighborhood area as is; plan is great as it 
is. 

• Councilmember Taylor stated they reduced a lot commercial around town. Rick 
Russ commented too much commercial around town and too much sprawl. In 
this area, it didn't match the parcels. In modern planning history, a strip of 
commercial is not a doable situation. Strip (of commercial) is difficult to do 
anything worthwhile. 

• Councilmember Holloway stated that he agrees with Council member Taylor. He 
foresees a future situation as uptown park (for the area). Jim McRea stated that 
we own a 4 acre corner and that we cannot guarantee to the residents that it will 
remain vacant in the year 2030. 

• Councilmember Holloway jokingly advised that the 30+ residents are potential 
investors to go buy the property in question. 

1 st resolution - Mayor Morgan asked for motion and Vice Mayor Wiknich approved while 
Mayor Pro Tem Carter second the motion. All approved (with modifications) 

2nd resolution - Mayor Morgan asked for motion and Vice Mayor Wiknich approved while 
Councilmember Taylor second the motion. All approved (with modifications) 

2. A Public Hearing To Discuss And Prioritize Proposed Community 
Development Block Grant Projects Speer 

A Public Hearing to discuss and prioritize proposed Community Development 
Block Grant Projects for the FY 2010-11 Annual Action Plan for Community 
Development Programs within the County of Kern five year Consolidated Plan. 

Identify community needs, discuss potential projects and action plan and 
consolidated action plan. Staff recommendation that CC approve in the 2011 for 
reconstruction of S Norma, receive public comments and CDBG priOrities. 

Public comments opened and closed at 9:41 pm 

• Tom Wiknich - asked about $50,000 in Boys and Girls club? Dennis 
Speer stated it is his understanding no information from county on match. 

• Jim McRea added that public hearing for 20-11 year is part of 5 year plan. 
$50,000 is under construction and country removed $50,000. 
Construction is in 5th year with boys and girls club. They are expanding 
and we went to bid but county said no. They didn't ask us they just took. 
No need to define the 5 year program tonight. 

__ --1 





MINUTES - CITY COUNCIL I REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY - REGULAR 
December 2, 2009 
Page 12 

• Barry Jung will send proposal and offer that we receive 2 years in advance 
and bill this fiscal year with conditions. Councilmember Taylor asked if we 
have to extend contract with current engineer and the answer is, no. 

Councilmember Taylor motioned to adopt while Councilmember Holloway 
second the motion. All approved. 

ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 

3. Resolution No. 09- , A Resolution Of The Ridgecrest City Council 
Approving A Three Year Partnership Agreement Between The City Of 
Ridgecrest And Southern California Edison And Authorizing The City 
Manager To Sign The Agreement And Rescinding Resolution 06-04 Taylor 

Ann Taylor stated that in 2006 the City entered into a partnership agreement with 
Southern California Edison to help the community and businesses have 
sustainable energy efficient programs. Council is requested to rescind 
Resolution 06-04 and approve a new resolution that continues the partnership 
between City of Ridgecrest and Southern California Edison with a three year 
partnership agreement. This agreement for the City and SCE to work as a whole 
to benefit the City of Ridgecrest for energy savings goal. This is an agreement 
for 3 years and this is a new 3 year program. This agreement will not help get 
Title 22 money. Ann Taylor also mentioned that the tree lighting at City Hall is 
coming up this weekend. Light exchange will be done at that time as well. 

• Dave Matthews asked if there is recommendations being pushed by SCE 
with regards to what the city shall do? Mayor Morgan said no, that SCE 
holds funds and they have to approve. Ann Taylor said last program was 
$300,000 and money went back into community. Christmas light 
exchange and new house lamps, plus energy bulbs. Dave Matthews 
stated the fixtures do not put out as much light and global warming thing is 
out of whack. 

Councilmember Taylor made motion to move and Vice Mayor Pro Tem Carter 
seconded. All approved. 

4. Introduction An First Reading. An Ordinance Of The City Council Of The 
City Of Ridgecrest Amending Chapter XII Article 9 And Repealing Chapter 
IV, Article 19 Of The City Of Ridgecrest Municipal Code Concerning Water 
Efficient Landscape Requirements McRea 

Ordinance 09-05 was discussed at the Regular City Council meetings of 
November 4 and November 18 at which time a Special Council Meeting was 
schedule for November 23 to finalize revisions to certain sections of the 
Ordinance. This Ordinance was reviewed at the Special meeting of the City 
Council on November 23. Changes were made to Section 12-9.5 Definitions; 12-
9.9 Single-Family Residential Landscape Procedure; 12-9.17 1 (a)(b)(c)(d) 
Mandatory Measures; and 12-93.21 Administrative Exceptions. The language 



MINUTES - CITY COUNCIL / REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY - REGULAR 
December 2, 2009 
Page 13 

changes were reviewed and approved by the City Attorney and the Ordinance is 
now placed on the agenda for first reading and introduction for the Council to 
review and make the following motions. 

Recommended Motions - 2 motions 

Motion To Waive Reading In Full Of An Ordinance Of The City Council Of 
The City Of Ridgecrest Amending Chapter XII Article 9 An Repealing 
Chapter IV, Article 19 Of The City Of Ridgecrest Municipal Code concerning 
Water Efficient Landscape Requirements 

Requires a second 

Motion To Introduce, By Title Only, An Ordinance Of The City Council Of 
The City Of Ridgecrest Amending Chapter XII Article 9 An Repealing 
Chapter IV, Article 19 Of The City Of Ridgecrest Municipal Code 
Concerning Water Efficient Landscape Requirements 

Requires a second 

• Mayor Morgan read some changes that were made to the ordinance such 
as on water run-off; swimming pool covers; continuous water flow, limits 
on washing vehicles. Councilmember Taylor stated the penalties need to 
be toned down for 1 st and 2nd violation. Mayor Morgan will get the 
wording to City Clerk for changes to ordinance. 

• Stan Rajtora asked who gets the fine? Person responsible for rental? 
Attorney Lemieux answered depends on the offense? If owner of water 
connection it could be someone in Iowa, whoever violates the ordinance. 
Stan Rajtora stated as long as it's clear ahead of time, not arbitrary. 

Councilman Taylor made motion to approve and Mayor Pro Tern Carter second. 
All approved. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

All items on the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine by City staff and 
will be approved in one motion if no member of the Council or the public wishes 
to comment or ask questions. If comment or discussion is desired by anyone, 
that item may be removed from the Consent Calendar and be considered 
separately, with public comment, before action is taken 

5. Minutes Of The Regular City Council/Redevelopment Agency Meeting Of 
November 18, 2009 Ford 

6. Minutes Of The Regular City Council/Redevelopment Agency Meeting Of 
November 24, 2009 Ford 



MINUTES - CITY COUNCIL I REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY - REGULAR 
December 2, 2009 
Page 14 

Mayor Pro Tern Carter made motion to approve and Councilmember Holloway 
second. All approved. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Persons wishing to address the Council on matters that are within the Council's 
jurisdiction and do not already appear on the agenda, may do so at this time. 
Pursuant to the Brown Act, the City Council may not take action on an item that 
does not appear on this Agenda. Speakers are limited to five (5) minutes. The 
PUBLIC COMMENT section of the Agenda is limited to a total of sixty (60) 
minutes. Speakers are asked to provide their name and address for the record. 

Open 10:05 public comment 

• Dave Matthews stated that the way the agenda is titled needs to be 
standardized. Not just City Council agendas but all agendas. 

• Jim Rachels commented that the trash ordinance is defective. Nothing in 
ordinance for blue can is mandated or for pricing of blue can. Gary 
Parsons recommended he come to City Council meeting and he is still 
waiting for answer. He recommends that all members of public read the 
ordinance. Benz is exceeding their authority and he raised this issue last 
week. Also, the electronic speed enforcement on China Lake Blvd is 
unjustified. Use of radar is illegal and constitutes a speed trap. He states 
he has read the law. He will not pay for recycle collection and he 
challenges the City Council to ticket him because the City Council is 
unsympathetic. He is willing to stand in court. He intends to bring a 
lawsuit against Benz. Since it's illegal speed enforcement on China Lake 
Boulevard, he intends to go over 35 m.p.h. on China Lake. He feels we 
have a city government not following the law. 

• Robert Eierman stated City Council's behavior is unacceptable. When 
Lemieux gives you bad advice it is you that will be harmed. He stated he 
doesn't make, he makes promises. 

• Gentleman at 709 S Albert -1.5 months ago he urged Council on the land 
swap Mr. Landis feels we are off the track. Mr. Landis is a little upset and 
that things are falling on deaf ears. The screen on Downs we are in the 
process of acquiring that. All invited to come out the first day of practice in 
Spring 2010. I'm asking you to not forget us and don't let 400 kids down. 
Mayor Morgan stated there is a process and not falling on deaf ears. 

• Mark Ball asked if computer crash question did that effect license 
renewal? City Manager Rose stated that staff has reconstructed that data. 
Mark Ball stated his last expiration came during city holiday and he could 
not pay. 



MINUTES - CITY COUNCIL I REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY - REGULAR 
December 2, 2009 
Page 15 

• Mike Neel asked why is public comment still at the end of the meeting? 
He requested a change. (Mayor Morgan stated it is still my fault.) 2nd 

comment on China Lake - they will have given 1,000 more traffic ticket this 
year and the reason for that you can talk to Mr. Strand. 3rd comment at 
the speed of light the ordinances get past. i.e. water ordinance 4th 

comment fence on the ball field someone needs to do the motion 
mechanics to see how high the fence needs to be. 

• Jim Davis stated commented on the "flack" City Council members have to 
take. He recommended to Council that when people bash them their 
answer should be, "bring me your solution and I'll consider it." He added, 
"what are you contributing, you complainers." He stated they do their job 
because they care. He reiterated that people who slam them should 
come up with a solution, come with you with a plan. He reminded the 
Council that the hospitality industry is here to help them. Their mission 
statement to support the city of Ridgecrest. 

• Walter Maurer stated that there are now 3 initiative measures. Title and 
summary received from city attorney late last week (on his initiative) and 
he appreciates the attorney doing that. Initiative to repel mandatory trash. 
Walt read the initiative to Council and the public. Elect the Mayor initiative 
garnered 1,400. Website will be launched within 24 hours. 

• Manuel Farmer commented that he been coming to these meeting and 
has seen the same people bashing Mayor and Council. He stated some 
of them ran for Council and didn't make it because the people didn't want 
them. He mentioned that people talk about franchisee what about Waste 
Mgmt and BFI they run most of trash in US - and as if they are a 
monopoly? 

• Mike Neel pOints about bashing; he stated that he has had Council 
thanking him for his comments. He stated most of these guys are "big 
enough boys, they can take it; we are all big boys." 

• Eddie commented that there are principals before personalities. What 
Council passed dipped into his pocketbook and he believes there is a 
solution. Voluntary would have been fine - mandatory is not necessary. 
When Council hit "us in pocketbook" that got his attention. He stated he 
was not there to bash Council. In his opinion, if Council really wants this, 
it can be fixed and he's sure that they can come up with a solution. 

MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS 

The Mayor and Council Members may make a brief statement. In addition, 
Council Members may ask questions of staff or the public for clarification on any 
matter, make a request of staff for factual information, or request staff to report 
back to the Council at a later meeting concerning any matter. In addition the 



MINUTES - CITY COUNCIL I REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY - REGULAR 
December 2, 2009 
Page 16 

Mayor or any Council Member may direct the City Manager to place an item of 
business on a future agenda. 

• Councilmember Holloway said it's been a long night - good night. 

• Vice Mayor Wiknich said mentioned getting his business license by 12/31 
and he's. Wished everyone good night. 

• Mayor Pro Tern Carter thanked everyone for their feedback. He also 
announced that his grandson is back from Iraq and he is glad to have him 
back. 

• Mayor Morgan reminded everyone December 6th is the tree lighting with 
Emmanuel Baptist choir providing the singing. He mentioned that it is OK; 
he doesn't care if some want to call him names, or if you want to recall 
him. He stated they can say what they want of us (Council) but they can't 
take it. 

• Councilmember Taylor - stated he has tree lighting at with Mayor Morgan. 
Also, regarding the posted speed limit - suggested strongly research. He 
stated he volunteered for this job, and has little over 1,000 days left and 
he understands the difficulty, however, the negative comments and tone 
have kept people away from the Chamber. Hope people stay involved 
and thankful for those that engaged Council in a positive manner. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Meeting was adjourned at 10:52p.m. 

This meeting was recorded and will be on file in the Office of the City Clerk for a 
certain period of time from date of approval by City Council/Redevelopment 
Agency. Meetings are recorded for the purpose of preparation of minutes . 

. f2!==~ 
- va Peterson, Recording Secretary 


